IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NUMBER: 74,509

DANIEL E. REMETA,

Petitioner,

vs.

7

10

٠ •

.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

PETITION FOR REVIEW OF FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEALS CASE NUMBER: 89-26



AUG 9 1989 CLERK, SUPREME COURT By_ Deputy Clerk

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER

EDWARD L. SCOTT, P.A. Laurel Run Professional Center 2100 S.E. 17th Street, Suite 802 Ocala, Florida 32671 (904) 622-2264 Florida Bar Number: 648957

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND THE FACTS

This attorney was appointed to represent DANIEL E. REMETA in Executive Clemency proceeding, pursuant to Section 925.035(4), an Florida (Appendix 1) After that representation, Statutes. application was made to the trial court for compensation for 51.65 hours expended in the representation. (Appendix 1) Section 925.035(4) allows compensation, not to exceed \$1,000.00, for attorney's fees and costs, but the trial court awarded this in fees plus \$622.78 for expenses. (Appendix attorney \$3,000.00 A Petition for Certiorari was filed by the State of Florida, 1) Department of Corrections, contesting the attorney fee awarded, because it was in excess of the statutory amount. (Appendix 1). The Fifth District Court of Appeals, in an Opinion filed on June 8, 1989, decided that the trial court had no authority to exceed \$1,000.00 plus expenses limitation set forth in the statute. the (Appendix 5)

A Motion for Rehearing was filed by this Petitioner on June
23, 1989 and denied by decision dated July 18, 1989. (Appendix
6)

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

1 1

Petitioner contends that the Florida Supreme Court has jurisdiction to review the decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeals in that the lower appellate court expressly declared valid Section 925.035(4), Florida Statutes, and because that court expressly construed the Fifth and Sixth Amendments of the United States Constitution in deciding that those Amendments did not apply to this factual situation. Petitioner urges that the Supreme Court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction since this case involves the basic rights to adequate counsel for defendants who are under sentence of death and because the lower courts are likely to need guidance in this area.

<u>ARGUMENT</u>

POINT I - THE COURT HAS JURISDICTION

The Petitioner contends that pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(3), Florida Constitution (1980) and Rule **9.030(a)(2)(A)(i)** and (ii), Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, this court has jurisdiction.

The Fifth District Court of Appeals was concerned with the validity of Section 925.035(4), Florida Statutes, and the contention of counsel for respondent below (Petitioner here) that that Section should be read in connection with Section 925.036, Florida Statutes. The lower appellate court was presented with the cases that provided that Section 925.036 was unconstitutional when the statutory maximum fees were applied to extraordinary cases as in <u>Makemson v. Martin County</u>, 491 So.2d 1109 (Fla. 1986) <u>cert. denied</u>, 479 U.S. 1043, 107 S.Ct. 908, 93 L.Ed.2d 857 (1987) (Appendix 2).

The Fifth District Court of Appeals said:

"While sympathetic to the trial judge in this case who did not want to provide token compensation to an attorney he appointed, we find the statutory maximum fee provided in Section 925.035(4), Florida Statutes, is mandatory, and distinguish this case from <u>Makemson</u> and <u>Lyons</u>, <u>supra</u>. We grant the petition and quash the order which exceeded the statutory maximum fee. ..." (Appendix 5).

Therefore, based on the authorities cited and the express declaration of the Fifth District Court of Appeals as to the validity of Section 925.035(4), Florida Statutes, and the statutory maximum fee set therein the Florida Supreme Court has jurisdiction. Additionally, the lower appeallate court's opinion expressly construes the Fifth Amendment and Sixth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution in deciding that they do not apply to this factual situation. This construction also serves as a basis for discretionary review by the Florida Supreme Court. The Florida Supreme Court has jurisdiction.

POINT 11-THE COURT SHOULD EXERCISE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION IN THIS CASE

Petitioner contends that jurisdiction should be entertained in this case, in that this matter concerns a very basic right to adequate counsel for defendants under the Fifth and Sixth Amendments of the United States Constitution and whether or not those basic rights apply to clemency proceedings.

It would appear to be an issue of general concern as to whether the distinction made by the Fifth District as to executive proceedings and judicial proceedings is a valid consideration as to appointment of counsel to represent defendants under sentence of death. The concern of the lower appellate court herein is evident from its expression:

"Nevertheless, because counsel in clemency proceedings is a statutory right, and no constitutional right is involved, the appointment of counsel in an executive clemency proceeding is not a "sensitive area of judicial concern" and it is within the province of the legislature to set a statutory maximum fee for such legal representation. The legislature, though, should realize that by imposing this financial limitation, it is not assuring effective assistance of counsel, only that legal representation that \$1,000.00 will buy." (Appendix 5).

It is apparent that while there is no conflict in the appellate decisions at this time on these issues, this would appear to be an area ripe for such conflict and the lower courts would benefit from a resolution of this matter by the Florida Supreme Court.