IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NUMBER: 74,509

DANIEL E. REMETA,

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Respondent contends that the Florida Supreme Court does not have discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeals pursuant to Rule 9.030 (a)(2)(A)(i) and (ii), Florida Rules of Appellate Procedure, in that the District Court did not expressly declare a state statute valid, nor did it expressly construe a provision of the state or federal constitutions. It merely ruled that the application of §925.035(4) was mandatory in this type proceeding, (a point never at issue herein), and that 5925.036, Florida Statutes and the Fifth and Sixth Amendments to the United States Constitution were inapplicable in the context of executive clemency proceedings.

Even assuming the Supreme Court has discretionary jurisdiction to consider the matter herein, contrary to Petitioner's statement that such jurisdiction should be exercised in this case since it involves the basic rights to adequate counsel, Respondent contends, and the District Court ruled, that these basic rights <u>do not</u> arise in the context of executive clemency proceedings but rather in <u>criminal judicial</u> proceedings.

The District Court has simply read and applied the pertinent statute to the facts of this case. It's ruling does not constitute a departure from the essential requirements of law justifying invocation of discretionary jurisdiction. Petitioner's request should be denied.

2

ARGUMENT

The mandatory application of Section 925.035(4), Florida Statutes, to the facts of this case was never an issue before the lower tribunal, rather Petitioner contended that said provision should be construed in accordance with cases addressing the wholly separate provision of 5925.036. Petitioner thus sought from the lower tribunal a ruling that §925.035(4) exclusively providing for attorney fee awards in executive clemency proceedings should be read in pari materia with 5925.036, dealing with attorney fee awards in <u>criminal judicial</u> proceedings.

The District Court noted the two distinct subject matters contained within the respective statutes, and thus declined to read the provisions in pari materia. It specifically ruled that in the context of executive clemency proceedings, 5925.036 and the cases construing said provision were inapplicable, and that the application of §925.035(4) was mandatory as the controlling statute. This ruling is in accordance with the express language of those statutory provisions.

The court's inherent power to over-ride attorney fee limitations as discussed in the case law construing **5925.036** was found lacking in the context of attorney fee awards in

3

executive clemency proceedings in that §925.035(4) involves no constitutional rights giving rise to the court's inherent power. As stated by the District Court:

> The clemency power to commute a death penalty is vested in the executive branch of the government. The constitutional right of indigent defendants to appointed counsel as guaranteed by the sixth amendment to the federal constitution or the fifth amendment due process clause, relates to criminal judicial proceedings and <u>does not extend</u> to a collateral executive clemency proceeding. (Emphasis supplied.)

The court acknowledged the troublesome aspects of

§925.035(4), nonetheless determined that:

...because counsel in clemency proceedings is a statutory right, and no constitutional right is involved, the appointment of counsel in an executive clemency proceeding is not a 'sensitive area of judicial concern' and it is within the province of the legislature to set a statutory maximum fee for such legal representation.

It is thus apparent that the District Court did not rule on the validity of a state statute or construe a federal constitutional provision. It simply considered the subject matter contained within each statute, and the constitutional provisions and ruled:

1) that §925.035(4) should not be read in pari materia with 8925.036, as the two statutes are substantively separate and distinguishable; and

2) that the Fifth and Sixth Constitutional Amendments are irrelevant in construing §925.035(4) as that provision does not involve the basic right to counsel in judicial proceedings.

4

For the foregoing reasons Petitioner's request for discretionary jurisdiction should be denied.